Public Document Pack

South East Community
Assembly

Thursday 11 October 2012 at 7.00 pm

To be held at Beighton Welfare
Recreation Ground, High Street,
Sheffield, S20 1EA

The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend

Membership

Councillors Ray Satur (Chair), David Barker, Isobel Bowler, Tony Downing,
Denise Fox, Bryan Lodge, Karen McGowan, Helen Mirfin-Boukouris, Mick Rooney,
Chris Rosling-Josephs, Jackie Satur and lan Saunders

Sheffield

City Council




PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING

There are seven Community Assemblies which cover Sheffield; each is made up of
the local Councillors from four wards. It is part of their remit to promote the local
involvement of local people in the democratic process and to bring decision making
closer to local people.

The formal meetings of the Community Assembly are open to the public and are the
place where the Councillors make funding decisions as delegated by the Cabinet,
relating to the priorities set out in the Community Plan and the Community
Involvement Plan. They take place a minimum of 4 times per year, though more
often, if required.

There is an opportunity for members of the public to ask questions and submit
petitions at these meetings.

A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council's website at
www.sheffield.gov.uk. You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance. The
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday, or you can ring on telephone no. 2734552. You
may not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential
information. These items are usually marked * on the agenda.

Community Assembly decisions are effective six working days after the meeting has
taken place, unless called-in for scrutiny by the relevant Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, in which case the matter is normally resolved within the monthly cycle of
meetings.

Further information on any of the agenda items can be obtained by speaking to
either:

« David Luck, Community Assembly Manager
Tel: 0114 203 7898
Email: david.luck@sheffield.gov.uk

. Gillian Capewell, Democratic Services
Tel: 0114 273 5485
Email: Gillian.capewell @sheffield.gov.uk



SOUTH EAST COMMUNITY ASSEMBLY AGENDA
11 OCTOBER 2012

Order of Business

1. Welcome and Housekeeping

2, Apologies for Absence

3. Exclusion of Public and Press

4. Declarations of Interest

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting
To approve the minutes of the meetings of the Assembly held on 5™ July
2012.

6. Public Questions and Petitions
To receive any questions or petitions from members of the public at the
meeting.

7. Skelton Lane Highways Petition
Report of the Highways Link Officer

8. Presentation on Becton School
Wendy Dudley and David Caborn to present

9. Ward Report
Verbal report of the South East Community Assembly Manager

10. Manager's Report
Verbal report of the South East Community Assembly Manager

11.  Dates of Future Meetings

10" January 2013, 7.00 pm, at Birley Community College, Thornbridge
Avenue (there will be a chance to ‘Meet the Cabinet’ on this evening from
5.00 pm- 6.30 pm)

27" March 2013, 7.00 pm- venue to be confirmed.

NOTE: The next meeting of the South East Community Assembly will
be held on Thursday 10 January 2013 at 7.00 pm

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

A new Standards regime was introduced on 1% July, 2012 by the Localism Act 2011.
The new regime made changes to the way that your interests needed to be



registered and declared. Prejudicial and personal interests no longer exist and they
have been replaced by Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs).

The Act also required that provision is made for interests which are not Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests and required the Council to introduce a new local Code of
Conduct for Members. Provision has been made in the new Code for dealing with
‘personal” interests.

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to
you previously, and has been published on the Council’'s website as a downloadable
document at -http://councillors.sheffield.gov.uk/councillors/register-of-councillors-
interests

If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before
the meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the
circumstances before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take.

Further advice can be obtained from Lynne Bird, Director of Legal Services on 0114
2734018 or email lynne.bird@sheffield.gov.uk




Agenda Item 5

SOUTH EAST COMMUNITY ASSEMBLY

Meeting held Thursday 5" July 2012
at Handsworth Grange School

PRESENT: Councillors David Barker, Tony Downing, Karen McGowan, Mick
Rooney, Jackie Satur, and lan Saunders

1. APPOINTMENT OF THE CHAIR OF THE MEETING AND DEPUTY CHAIR
OF THE ASSEMBLY

RESOLVED: That in the absence of the Chair of the Assembly (Councillor
Ray Satur), Councillor David Barker be appointed to Chair the meeting and
that Councillor David Barker be also appointed as the Deputy Chair of the
South East Community Assembly for the Municipal Year 2012/13.

2. WELCOME AND HOUSEKEEPING ARRANGEMENTS

The Chair welcomed attendees to the Community Assembly meeting and
outlined basic housekeeping arrangements.

3. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the
public and press.

4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE FROM MEMBERS OF THE ASSEMBLY
Apologies for absence were received from the Chair (Councillor Ray Satur)
and Councillors Isobel Bowler, Denise Fox, Bryan Lodge, Helen Mirfin-
Boukouris and Chris Rosling-Josephs.

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

6. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

6.1  The minutes of the meeting of the South East Community Assembly held on
5t April 2012, were approved as a correct record, subject to the addition of

the following paragraphs:-

“6.16  (4) Waterthorpe Greenway Playing Fields

6.17 The Assembly confirmed its continued support in maintaining the
decision not to sell the Waterthorpe Greenway Playing Fields.”

Page 1



Meeting of the South East Community Assembly 05.07.2012 2

6.2

6.3

7.1

7.2

7.21

Arising from consideration of the minutes, the Assembly noted that:-

(@) The residents’ consultation on the Thorpe Green Play Area had
now been completed with 75% of respondents being in favour
of its construction and a slight majority in favour of making an
adjustment to its proposed location. A meeting was to take
place in the area the following week to discuss how to proceed
and it was hoped that the play area would be installed in early
Autumn 2012.

(b) The Chair would speak to Councillor Jack Scott, Cabinet
Member for Environment, Waste and Streetscene, about the
use of green waste sacks as an alternative to green waste
bins, and report back.

(c) The Chair stated that he would find out when the Sheffield
Development Framework additional site representations were
to be placed before Cabinet and would report back.

(d) A part-time Enforcement Officer, working 2%z days per week,
had been appointed and had been on a tour of the area that
day. The officer would be establishing links with partners in
due course and would deal with issues such as dog fouling and
litter.

The minutes of the meeting of the South East Community Assembly held on
16" May 2012, were approved as a correct record.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS
Petitions
No petitions were submitted to the Assembly.

Public Question

Provision of Community Facilities

The Chair indicated that Members and officers were willing to work with the
questioner and community groups with regard to the provision of community
facilities in the Assembly’s area.

EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DECISIONS

SOUTH EAST COMMUNITY ASSEMBLY HIGHWAYS BUDGET 2012/13

The Highways Link Manager and South East Community Assembly Manager
submitted a joint report which set out ideas for spending the Assembly’s
allocation of £40,000 for Highways schemes in 2012/13 and any underspend
carried forward from the 2011/12 budget.

Page 2



Meeting of the South East Community Assembly 05.07.2012 3

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Public Question

David Luck, Community Assembly Manager, listed the proposed locations for
the Speed Indication Devices (SIDs) as being Retford Road, Beaver Hill
Road, Sheffield Road, Beighton Road, Station Road and possibly Skelton
Road. He added that the SIDs would be in place for two months at a time
and that he would be looking at timescales for implementation and would
report back.

Decision Taken
RESOLVED: That the South East Community Assembly:-

(@) notes the information contained within the report and allocates the
following sums from the South East Community Assembly Highways
Budget 2012/13:

e Speed Indication Device maintenance/installation of equipment for
new sites £13,000

e £5000 per Ward for small schemes; and

(b) authorises the South East Community Assembly Manager, in
conjunction with the Community Assembly Chair, to decide on the
schemes to be funded from the Ward budgets now established.

Reasons For The Decision

The purpose of the Highways Budget is to respond to local requests for
Highways improvements. Safe roads and pavements is one of the South
East Assembly Community Plan priorities. The allocations proposed allow for
the sound operation of Speed Indication Devices and the agreement of local
small schemes whilst leaving scope for the Community Assembly to decide
larger schemes at a later date.

Alternatives Considered and Rejected

(@) No Ward budgets — This would involve Members considering all
requests and would be unworkable.

(b) Divide the whole budget into Ward allocations — This would not take into
account variations in needs across the area and previous investment.

SOUTH EAST COMMUNITY ASSEMBLY REPRESENTATION ON
SHEFFIELD HOMES SOUTH EAST AREA BOARD

The Community Assembly Manager submitted a report on the proposed

nomination of two Members of the Community Assembly to serve on the
Sheffield Homes South East Area Board.

Page 3



Meeting of the South East Community Assembly 05.07.2012

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

Decision Taken

RESOLVED: That the South East Community Assembly:-

(a) having regard to the positive views expressed by the Cabinet Member
for Homes and Neighbourhoods about the proposal to nominate
Councillor Chris Rosling-Josephs and Councillor Denise Fox to the
Sheffield Homes South East Area Board, nominates those two Members

of the Assembly to these positions;

(b) requests the Director of Modern Governance to refer these nominations

to Full Council at the earliest opportunity; and

(c) requests the Community Assembly Manager to complete the necessary
paperwork to effect these appointments, in consultation with the Director

of Legal Services.
Reasons For The Decision
The South East Community Assembly has been requested to nominate two
Sheffield City Council appointees to the Sheffield Homes South East Area
Board.

Alternatives Considered and Rejected

The South East Community Assembly could consider alternative nominees to

the Councillors proposed.

NON-EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

HIGHWAYS ISSUES

David Luck, Community Assembly Manager, reported as follows:-

(@) There was a commitment to funding at least one 20 mph zone per
Community Assembly up to a value of £40,000 and this was to be
delivered between 2012 and 2014. This would cover signs and
markings only and Members were considering options at Hackenthorpe

and Charnock in more detail.

(b) Amey had been appointed as contractor for the Streets Ahead PFI
(Private Finance Initiative) Project. The agreement was for Amey to
bring the City’s highways up to an agreed standard over a 5 year period
and maintain them over a period of 25 years. The work would include
lighting, signage and trees as well as the highway and there would be a
phased approach with all aspects covered at the same time. Residents

would be given notice of when any works were to take place.

RESOLVED: That the South East Community Assembly notes the

information reported.

Page 4



Meeting of the South East Community Assembly 05.07.2012 5

11.

11.1

11.2

12.

WOODHOUSE WARD REPORT

David Luck, Community Assembly Manager, gave a presentation on activities
in the Woodhouse Ward which included some statistical information, and
information regarding the Health Champions Project and the activities of the
Woodhouse Forum and Handsworth Forum. He also informed the Assembly
of the Community First funding arrangements and provided details of the
funded projects. David Luck also reported on the Handsworth Fun Day and
the work of the Salvation Army, Handsworth Historical Society and Friends of
Shirtcliffe. In conclusion, the Community Assembly was informed of a field
being designated a QEII Field in Trust at Woodhouse Mill.

Public Questions

Responses to public questions were provided as follows:-

(i) A member of the public indicated that the majority of Handsworth Park
was owned by Ackroyd and Abbott.

(i) David Luck explained that the Emerging Issues Fund was an amount set
aside per Ward for issues which arose. Community groups were able to
apply for funds from this allocation but the need had to be demonstrable.

RESOLVED: That the South East Community Assembly:-

(@) notes the information reported; and

(b) welcomes the positive items reported, particularly in these times of
financial stringency.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The Assembly noted that its next meeting would be held on Thursday, 11"
October 2012, at 7.00 pm at a venue in the Beighton Ward.

(NOTE: These minutes are subject to approval at a future meeting.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda ltem 7

Sgegfielld SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL
Y oune South East 7
Community Assembly Report

Report of: Southern Project Delivery Manager
Date: 11" October 2012
Subject: Proposal to make Skelton Lane and Spa Lane,

Woodhouse, one-way — consultation feedback

Author of Report: Simon Nelson (tel. 0114 2736176)

Summary:

This report describes the outcome of consultation on a proposal to make Skelton
Lane and Spa Lane one-way to all traffic. It goes on to recommend measures to
alleviate congestion.

Reasons for Recommendations:

Despite the high level of support for the one-way system on Skelton Lane and
Spa Lane there remain significant concerns about its impact. The recommended
measures would go some way to addressing the problems of congestion without
the same drawbacks.

Recommendations:
e The Assembly note the outcome of the consultation and the content of this
report.

e The Assembly fund and promote the introduction of ‘bus clearway’ restrictions
at bus stops, and waiting restrictions around the mouths of junctions and at
crossing points, along the length of Skelton Lane and Spa Lane.

e The petitioners and those who provided contact details with their survey
response are informed of the Assembly’s decision.

Background Papers: NONE

Category of Report: OPEN

Page 7 1



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist

Financial Implications

YES Cleared by: Matthew Bullock

Legal Implications

YES Cleared by: Andrew Bullock

Equality of Opportunity Implications

YES Cleared by: lan Oldershaw

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications

NO

Human rights Implications

NO

Environmental and Sustainability implications

NO

Economic impact

NO

Community safety implications

NO

Human resources implications

NO

Property implications

NO

Area(s) affected

South East Community Assembly area of Sheffield

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in

Safer and Stronger Communities

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?

NO

Press release

NO

Page 8




PROPOSAL TO MAKE SKELTON LANE AND SPA LANE, WOODHOUSE,
ONE-WAY - CONSULTATION FEEDBACK

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

4.0

4.1

4.2

SUMMARY

This report describes the outcome of consultation on a proposal to make
Skelton Lane and Spa Lane one-way to all traffic. It goes on to
recommend measures to alleviate congestion.

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE

If approved, the proposals recommended in this report would address
some of the issues and priorities of local people.

OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY

The measures identified in this report would help to make the roads and
pavements safer for pedestrians and vehicle drivers, one of the priorities
in the South East Community Assembly Plan.

The measures would support the City Council’s priorities, values and
outcomes as set out in the Corporate Plan ‘Standing Up For Sheffield’,
in particular Supporting and protecting communities; Spend public
money wisely; and making the City A Great Place to Live.

MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT
Introduction

South East Community Assembly has received complaints that cars
parked on Skelton Lane and Spa Lane, Woodhouse, sometimes prevent
drivers from passing each other, causing congestion and delays to bus
services. (Bus services operate in one direction, clockwise, from Spa
Lane into Skelton Lane.)

In May 2011 the Assembly asked officers to investigate the feasibility of
making either the full length of Skelton Lane and Spa Lane one-way
only. Consideration was also given to making a section of Skelton Lane
one-way form Water Slacks Road to Tannery Street. The resultant
report, presented to Assembly Members in September 2011, concluded
that whilst either arrangement would be feasible, there would be
significant drawbacks:

e Either proposal would adversely affect the accessibility of all
properties along Skelton Lane and Spa Lane;

¢ Visitors driving to Woodhouse Library and Woodhouse Health Centre

would have to travel a considerable additional distance to reach the
car park or to be able to park on Skelton Lane;

Page 9 3



4.3

4.4

e Some drivers would be likely to travel at higher speeds knowing that
no traffic would be coming from the opposite direction. (The feasibility
report recommended that some form of measure to moderate speeds
should be introduced alongside a one-way system); and

e That the considerable cost of such a scheme would be
disproportionate to the problem

The feasibility report contained an alternative proposal which would
maintain two-way traffic but prohibit drivers from parking at bus stops
and around junction mouths, creating a series of passing places. This
was rejected by the Assembly on the grounds that it would remove
much needed parking opportunities.

Consultation

The Assembly decided that the opinion of local residents should be
canvassed. In February 2012 letters were delivered door-to-door to
properties on, or accessed from, Skelton Lane, Spa Lane and Water
Slacks Road. People were asked two questions: whether they agreed
that congestion was a problem; and whether Skelton Land and Spa
Lane should be made one-way. A prepaid envelope was provided for
questionnaire returns. A copy of the information delivered to residents is
appended to this report (Appendix A).

Approximately 830 questionnaires were delivered. 287 (34.6%) were
returned and the responses are summarised below:

Yes 250 87.1%
Do you agree that there are
Q1) often congestion problems on No 33 11.5%
Skelton Lane and Spa Lane? N
0 (o)
Answer 4 1.4%
Total 287 100.0%
Do you agree that Skelton Yes 196 68.3%
Lane and Spa Lane should
be made one-way from 0
Q2) Meetinghouse Lane to No 82 28.6%
Tannery Street / Sheffield No o
Road? Answer 9 3.1%
Total 287 100.0%

163 people gave their name and address so that they could be informed
of the Assembly’s decision.

Page 10 4



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

The overwhelming majority of people completing the questionnaire
(87.1%) agree that congestion is a problem. 68.3% of respondents
support the proposal to make Skelton Lane and Spa Lane one-way.

Respondents were asked for comments or suggestions about how to
improve the traffic flow on Skelton Lane and these are summarised in
Appendix B.

Many people have no alternative but to park on Skelton Lane and Spa
Lane due to a lack of off-street parking provision, something that is
mentioned time and again in the survey responses (67 comments).
There is a general consensus that Skelton Lane/Spa Lane can be
congested at times and that this is caused by cars being parked so as to
deny drivers travelling in opposing directions the opportunity to pass
each other.

All 40 people that named a specific ‘problem’ location identified the
approaches to, and junctions with, the B6064 Tannery Street/Market
Street. The majority of those people also referred to the congestion that
they feel is generated by Woodhouse Health Centre and Woodhouse
Library at the north end of Skelton Lane. 70 people, including many
who support the one-way proposal, asked for additional waiting
restrictions, particularly in the area close to the Health Centre.

Others questioned whether the problems were so acute as to justify
changing the working of the whole road.

Woodhouse Health Centre

The Practice Manager has indicated that the Practice would object to
the introduction of the one-way proposal. Whilst agreeing that
congestion is a problem, and one that is contributed to by their patients,
they believe that the proposal would:

e cause critical delays to doctors going to emergency home visits from
the surgery

¢ significantly increase the time it takes Ambulances to reach the
surgery

e contribute to congestion. “People will come round Spa Lane to
Skelton Lane to see if there are parking spaces in the surgery car
park, when there are none they will then go round again to try and
park on the street as near to the surgery as possible.” The Practice
feels that this increase in traffic and exhaust fumes would have an
impact on the health of the local population, a relatively high
proportion of who suffer from chronic obstructive pulmonary disease.

e cause speeds to increase and so create a danger for frail and elderly
people crossing the road “as drivers drive recklessly around the loop
in frustration at driving the long way around... and it's otherwise a
relatively long stretch of otherwise quiet road... The parked cars slow

Page 11 5



4.1

412

4.13

4.14

4.15

people down in order to allow others through — they would have to
have traffic calming at a massive cost to achieve the same effect.”

They query whether there is evidence that car traffic is delayed much
more than on other residential roads in Sheffield.

Finally the practice request the introduction of parking restrictions in the
area around the entrance to the staff car park and nearby junctions “to
spread people a little further up the road as there is actually plenty of
space to park”

Woodhouse Library

The Area Library Manager completed a survey form on behalf of the
staff of Woodhouse Library. It indicates that they support the one-way
proposal but offered no additional comment. However they have
requested further waiting restrictions on Skelton Lane (there is currently
a ‘Keep Clear’ marking) so that delivery drivers would be able to pull in
without blocking the road. The Library staff would also like a length of
waiting restriction across the access to a small gated off-street car park
at the side of the building as they are sometimes unable to access this
area because of other parked vehicles on the road.

Petition

A petition containing 43 signatures has been received, requesting that
Skelton Lane and Spa Lane be made one-way on the grounds that “/f is
not a safe road for either the traffic or pedestrians, it is not even safe for
the traffic to travel both ways at the same time.”

Ward Members

Officers met with the three Members for Woodhouse on 3™ September
2012 to discuss the results of the consultation and the way forward. The
Members reiterated their support for the proposal to make Skelton Lane
and Spa Lane one-way only.

Emergency Service

The Fire Service and Veolia have confirmed that a one-way system
would not cause any difficulties. The police, who would be responsible
for enforcing the scheme “would not support a one-way system in this
area at all’.

Bus Services
Whilst not quantifying any difficulties, the three bus operators with

services using Spa Lane/Skelton Lane have stated they would welcome
the introduction of a one-way system.

Page 12 6



Accident data

4.16 There have been three recorded collisions on Skelton Lane/Spa Lane in
the five years to the end of June 21012, each resulting in a slight injury:

e A car emerging from Lambscroft View collided with a taxi travelling
south along Spa Lane and drove away from the scene

¢ A child on a pushbike. The bike’s brakes failed and the child collided
with the side of a car

¢ An elderly lady fell from the seat of a bus as the driver braked heavily
to avoid a taxi pulling out in front of it

Discussion

4.17 There is much frustration with the lack of off-street parking and the
congestion caused by on-street parking, and widespread support for the
one-way proposal. However, people both for and against the proposal
raised concerns:

i That people would choose to drive faster, making the road less safe

i Ease of access to and from all properties would be compromised
and in some cases drivers would face significant detours

i Turning movements into and out of the area would be concentrated
on fewer junctions, increasing the likelihood of queuing traffic on
Tannery Street/Market Street as people attempt to enter the area,
and on Skelton Lane as people attempt to leave

iv. More traffic would use Water Slacks Road
v People would park/reverse in Meetinghouse Lane for a quicker exit

vi The proposals would not address the root causes of the congestion,
the lack of off-street parking, particularly the acute problems on the
Skelton Lane/Spa Lane approaches to Tannery Street/Market Street

4.18 Officers believe that each of these concerns is justified.

i The conversion of a road from two-way to one-way is usually
accompanied by an increase in vehicle speeds as drivers become
accustomed to the absence of an opposing flow of traffic. The
precise change could only be determined by ‘before’ and ‘after
speed surveys, however attention is drawn to research that suggests
that a 1mph increase from an average speed of 20mph generates a
7% increase in collisions." This is of particular concern given the
high proportion of elderly residents.

' Transport Research Laboratory Report 421 - The effects of drivers' speed on the frequency of
road accidents (Taylor M, Lynam D and Baruya A, 2000)

Page 13 7



4.19

Vi

Ease of access would be compromised. For instance:

¢ A resident seeking to access a property just south of Water Slacks
Road from the west, either via Skelton Lane or Water Slacks Road
would have to drive approximately 500m further

e Those seeking to park near the library and health centre will have
to drive approximately 300m further (coming from the west) and
280m further (coming from the east)

e Somebody who lives on Spa Lane immediately south of
Meetinghouse Lane will have to travel an addition distance of over
1km in order to travel east on Market Street

The net result would be greater distances travelled on these roads.
Some would of course find these increases acceptable if traffic on
Skelton Lane/Spa Lane moves more easily.

At present there are three ways in and out of the area, Skelton Lane,
Spa Lane and Water Slacks Road. Under this proposal there would
be two: Spa Lane and Water Slacks Road to enter the area; and
Skelton Lane and Water Slacks Road to exit. From the consultation
responses: “Increased traffic turning right from Market Street onto
Spa Lane [would cause] a bottleneck at the existing traffic island.
This will also cause issues for pedestrians using the pedestrian
traffic island between Market Street and the Stag car park...
Increased traffic turning right onto Tannery Street from Skelton Lane
[would make] it more difficult for people to cross on the zebra
crossing than it already is.”

Fewer points of access would inevitably increase the attractiveness
of Water Slacks Road. It is extremely likely that the volume of traffic
using Water Slacks Road would increase.

The proposed one-way section begins immediately south of the
junction of Spa Lane and Meetinghouse Lane, allowing the residents
of Meetinghouse Lane to exit directly onto Tannery Street/Market
Street. Without parking restrictions it is likely that some residents of
Spa Lane would attempt to park in this area.

Ward Councillors requested that the consultation should only be
concerned with the one-way proposal and not the introduction of
waiting restrictions.

Prior to being subsumed into Amey, Street Force provided a Budget
Estimate for the cost of introducing the one-way proposal of £39,600.
(This includes allowances for design; the provision and installation of
traffic signs and road markings; site clearance; Yorkshire Electricity’s
fees for making electrical connections signs that require illuminating; the
cost of advertising and making a one-way Traffic Regulation Order; and
a commuted sum to pay for future maintenance.) Colleagues at Amey

Page 14 8



4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

have been asked to review this figure, and it is anticipated that a revised
Budget Estimate will be available by the time of this meeting.

All highway schemes of this scale are subject to a four-stage
independent Road Safety Audit process (at preliminary design, detailed
design, on completion and 12 and 36 months post-completion). The
Assembly should be aware that it is likely that the Audit Team would
raise similar concerns to those described in paragraph 4.17 above, and
almost certainly in relation to the potential for vehicle speeds to
increase. In this situation the Head of Transport, Traffic and Parking
Services would be asked to adjudicate on the implementation of a
scheme that the Audit Team were recommending should not go ahead
in the form shown in the consultation document. The Assembly is
therefore again advised that that the introduction of a one-way scheme
should only be considered if accompanied by suitable traffic calming
measures.

Alternative proposal

Congestion could be eased by creating a series of passing places along
Skelton Lane/Spa Lane as described in the feasibility report and shown
in Appendix C. This suggestion has previously been rejected by the
Assembly.

It is acknowledged that legitimate parking opportunities are at a
premium in some areas and so it is suggested that restrictions be limited
to locations where people should not be parking now, such as at bus
stops, within 10m of junctions or across dropped crossings. A number
of dropped crossings are currently marked with the non-regulatory ‘Keep
Clear’ marking.

This alternative proposal would:

e prohibit parking at places at which parked vehicles currently present a
hazard to other drivers by restricting visibility and to pedestrians by
denying access to crossing places and making it difficult to board
buses;

e remove parking from the Skelton Lane/Spa Lane approaches to
Tannery Street/Market Street making it easier for drivers to turn in
and out of these junctions; and

e provide locations at which drivers would have space to pull in and
allow an opposing vehicle to pass.

In doing so it would go some way to relieving the congestion currently
experienced, without the negative impacts of the one-way proposal
identified in both the feasibility report and during the consultation
process.

Page 15 9



4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

The police have indicated that they “would be more likely to support”
such a proposal. The Council’s Civil Enforcement Officers would be
responsible for enforcing the restrictions.

Street Force has provided a Budget Estimate of £12,300 for this work.
A revised estimate has been requested from Amey.

Conclusion

There is a lack of off-street parking for the residents of Skelton Lane
and, to a lesser extent, Spa Lane. On-street parking currently narrows
the road to a single lane in many places, causing congestion, delays to
bus services and frustration for residents. Whilst acknowledging the
widespread support for the proposal to make Skelton Lane/Spa Lane
one-way, officers have a duty to make the Assembly fully aware of the
possible and certain effects of introducing that scheme.

On balance, officers feel that the one-way scheme shown in the
consultation document and requested by the petitioners does not
represent the best solution to these problems.

It is not suggested that the alternative proposal, described in paragraph
4.21, would be a panacea; some people would not be able to park
where they do at present, and may have to walk an additional distance
to their destination. The road would still be narrowed to a single lane in
places and drivers travelling in opposing directions would continue to
have to wait to give way to each other. But clearly prohibiting parking in
places where people should not park anyway would create passing
opportunities, relieving the worst of the congestion. Officers feel that
this represents a proportionate response to the congestion experienced
on Spa Lane and Skelton Road.

In the event that the Assembly wishes to pursue this alternative
proposal, officers would seek authority from the Head of Transport,
Traffic and Parking Services to advertise and invite comments on the
associated Traffic Regulation Order with a view to implementing the
restrictions as soon as possible.

Relevant implications

The introduction of either the one-way proposal or the alternative
proposal outlined in paragraph 4.21 above would be met from the
Assembly’s approved 2012/13 highways budget allocation (£40,000),
any funding not yet committed from the 2011/12 highways allocation,
and/or the Assembly’s discretionary budget. Amey have been asked to
provide Budget Estimates for both proposals in time to be reported
verbally at this meeting.

The Council has a statutory duty to promote road safety and to ensure
that any measures it promotes and implements are reasonably safe for
all users. In making decisions of this nature the Council must be
satisfied that the measures are necessary to avoid danger to

Page 16 10



4.32

pedestrians and other road users or for preserving or improving the
amenities of the area through which the road runs. Providing that the
Council is so satisfied then it is acting lawfully and within its powers.

An Equality Impact Assessment has been conducted and concludes that
the proposed one-way system is likely to have negative equality impacts
for certain groups. There would be an increased risk to vulnerable
pedestrians and road users such as the young, the elderly, disabled
people and their carers plus families with young children due to the
liklihood that traffic will travel faster on a one-way road. There will be
increased journey times for these groups if travelling by car to
Woodhouse Health Centre.  The alternative option, for waiting
restrictions at junctions, crossing points and bus stops, would improve
access for pedestrians and bus users by removing parked cars that
currently cause obstructions to people seeking to cross the road and
board buses and would therefore have positive implications for these
groups. Both proposals are equality neutral for other protected
characteristics such as race, religion, sexuality, etc.

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

5.1  See paragraph 4.21 above

6.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1  Despite the high level of support for the one-way system on Skelton
Lane and Spa Lane there remain significant concerns about its impact.
The recommended measures would go some way to addressing the
problems of congestion without the same drawbacks.

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 The Assembly note the outcome of the consultation and the content of
this report.

7.2 The Assembly fund and promote the introduction of ‘bus clearway’
restrictions at bus stops, and waiting restrictions around the mouths of
junctions and at crossing points, along the length of Skelton Lane and
Spa Lane.

7.3  The petitioners and those who provided contact details with their survey
response are informed of the Assembly’s decision.

Nigel Robson

Southern Project Delivery Manager 11" October 2012

Page 17 11



8T obed

,{

%
A

I
T

\.
\

2,
[

[

" and Spa Lane one-way only

{"'-__' delays to the bus services. The Assembly feel that a cne-way -
# system would help.

e The Assembly would ke to know whether you would support ‘f'f
* or object to Skelton Lane and Spa Lane being made one-way |

" Drawbacks

APPENDIX A

Proposal to make Skelton Lane

South East Community Assembly arse concerned that cars TS
parked on Skefton Lane and Spa Lane sometimes prevent
drivers from passing each other, causing congestion and )

onty, clockwise from Meetinghouse Lane.

Advantages .
*  Car drivers and buses would not be delayed by fraffic %)
coming from the opposite direction f"

= Many people would have to drive further to get to and
from their home, and visitors to the library and medical
cenire would have to drive the full length of Spa Lane
and Skelton Lane

=  Some drivers may travel faster because they will not
expect to meet anyone coming the other way

= A ot of new traffic signs would be needed

Tell us what you think

Please tell us whether you think this is a good or bad idea by :’
completing the attached form and retuming it by Friday 9
March 2012 using the Freepost envelope provided (no

stamp required).

This orawng is based Upon Ororance Sunsey matedai wilth e permission of Osnnanos
Zuresy on beiraf of the Confrolier of Her Majeshy's Siatorery Office. = *Croen Copyright.
Unauthorizad reproduction mfringes Crown copyright and may ead o prosecution or cvl
proceedings. T00018516. 2040

Fle Hame: GADELISDAPENG_TRAFFICTHMIEchems DesgnllLTOZE Sk=fon Lane - Spa Lane one-wayAoedi Th-LTOES-PO 1 dwa
Drawn by: Simon Nesson, January 2042 Traffic Management Team

Development Services
Transport &Highways Division

City Counel

12



APPENDIX B

Proposal to make Skelton Lane and Spa Lane one-way
Consultation responses

Questionnaires delivered Thursday 23rd February 2012
Number of questionnaires delivered: 830 (approx)
Number of responses: 287

Response rate: 34.6%

Summary of responses:

Yes 250 87.1%
Do you agree that there are often
Q1) congestion problems on Skelton No 33 11.5%
Lane and Spa Lane?
No Answer 4 1.4%
Total 287 100.0%
Do you agree that Skelton Lane and Yes 196 68.3%
Spa Lane should be made one-way o
Q2) from Meetinghouse Lane to Tannery No 82 28.6%
Street / Sheffield Road? No Answer 9 3.1%
Total 287 100.0%
Summary of comments:
Congestion and parking Number of
comments
Double yellow lines are needed at junctions with the main road and
48
Health Centre
Parking permits/off road parking needed for residents. 27
Park on one side only 22
Convert verges to parking/widen road 24
More parking needed at the Health Centre 15
Currently difficult for buses 9
Existing and new parking restrictions must be enforced 7
Create passing points 4
Double yellow lines on needed at the junction with Meetinghouse Lane 3
Create sheltered parking 1
Encourage cars to park with wheels on pavement. 1

Page 19



Summary of comments (contd.):

Drawbacks of the one-way proposal é\lolﬂqr::;; f
One-way would encourage speeding. 9
Right-turning vehicl_es in and out would cause a bottleneck (also have to 9
give way to pedestrians at zebra on Tannery St)
Loqger journeys/increased traffic flow/creates access problems for 9
residents
A one-way system would be costly 5
Proposals won'’t stop parking problems outside Health Centre 7
There are no problems on Skelton Lane in the evening/at weekends 6
People will park/reverse in Meetinghouse Lane for a quicker exit 4
Lo.ts of elderly and disabled., one way would mean wheelchair users 3
going into road to enter vehicles.
In heavy snow it’s easier to go downhill rather than uphill. 2
Problems on Spa Lane are only at night 2
General Number of
comments
Take buses off Spa Lane 5
Make one-way from Water Slacks Road to Tannery Street 5
Introduce a 20mph speed limit 5
Safe crossing points needed 5
Traffic calming needed 3
Traffic held up by learner drivers. 2
Important to keep Spa Lane and Skelton Lane accessible to buses 2
Not noticed congestion problems 2
Not busy enough for one-way 2
Buses don't have to wait for long 2
One-way would improve access for emergency services 1
Cars already speed 1
Fill in the potholes 1
One-way should be other way round 1

Page 20




T¢ obed

, ' APPENDIX C

Skelton Lane and E

Spa Lane:

Alternative Proposal g{
N

Key

Proposed ‘Mo Waiting
at Any TIme' restriction
Proposed 'Bus Stop

|- This drawlng Is based upan Ordnance Survey material with the permlaslon of Ordrence Survey an behalt
Clearway' restriction

of the Controller of Her Malasty's Stetlenary Offlca, & Crown Copyright,. Uneutharisad reproduction \/
Infrnges Crown copyrlaht and may lead o prosecutlon o clvil procesdngs, 100098816, 2012 4\)

S i

Scheme Dellvery Group City Council

= el
Flle Mame; GHDELSDAFENG_TRAFF|CITTM Seheme DeslgniLTDZE Skelion Lane - Spa Lane ane-wey AcadiTM-L TOZE-F01,dwyg LRy, e
Orawn by: Slmen Nelson, January 2012 Traffle, Transporl & Parklng Servlces | o=



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Skelton Lane Highways Petition

